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FAQs – FY 2015 CDBG Applications 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS No. 1 
Posted January, 2014 

Contact: CDBG@sandiego.gov 

1.  RFP Question B.3 asks for the number of City residents served whose income fall below 50%. 
If my agency is serving presumed benefit clients, do we also need to address how many of those 
clients are below 50% of the area median income? 

Yes – see instructions for Q3, revised as of 1/17/2014, which provide further detail. 

2.  If a grant writer (program leader) and the main fiscal contact attend the RFP meeting, does 
that satisfy the applicant attendance requirement? 

Yes, although the intent is for applicant agencies’ staff to attend the workshops in order to ensure that 
those who are responsible for administering the proposed CDBG project are fully aware of CDBG 
program rules and requirements. 

3. If the RFQ was submitted for a Public Service Project, but the project may also qualify as 
Community/Economic Development, may the RFP be submitted under this category? 

Yes, but please note that additional information related to agency capacity and staffing (as required in 
the RFQ) may need to be submitted if changed from the RFQ –please contact the City of SD HUD 
Program via CDBG@sandiego.gov in order to discuss specifics related to your project(s)/agency. 
Additionally, note that staff from your agency must have attended the correct CDBG project category 
workshops (PS/ED and CIP) is mandatory.   

4. Are census tracts in Table 3a 2000 or 2010? 

2000 –see instructions for Q3, revised as of 1/17/2014, which provide further detail. 

5. Where do we find HUD presumed low income? 

 Page 23 of the CDBG Program FY 2015 RFP Handbook describes the CDBG Benefit Categories and 
expands on how Limited Clientele is defined.  Appendix A of the Handbook also identifies HUD income 
limits for the City of San Diego based on household size.   
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6. On page 6 of the application, Section C-Public Services Projects, can we check both 
employment training service and youth services? 

Select one category most appropriate for your agency’s proposed project (only one category may be 
chosen). Additional information can be included in the narrative section for question 1.b. on page 6.  

7. Are HUD qualified census tracts the same as CDBG eligible census tracts? 

No.   
 
CDBG eligible census tracts refers to those census tracts identified by HUD as CDBG eligible:  51% or 
more of the population makes 80% of the Area Median Income (AMI).  Please note that the last time 
HUD identified CDBG eligible census tracts, this was based on the 2000 census –such census tracts are 
listed Appendix B of the Handbook and maps showing their location are available on the website.   
 
Conversely, Qualified Census Tracts (QCTs) are identified by HUD for purposes of the Low-Income 
Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program. The LIHTC program is defined in Section 42 of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986. The LIHTC is a tax incentive intended to increase the availability of affordable rental 
housing.  The LIHTC statute provides two criteria for QCT eligibility.  A census tract must have either: 1) a 
poverty rate of at least 25 percent; or 2) 50 percent or more of its householders must have incomes 
below 60 percent of the area median household income. 

8. If the organization serves all the City of San Diego, do we need to put all census tracts in Q3a? 

A project that is intended to serve residents disbursed throughout the City would NOT qualify as 
LOW/MODERATE AREA project and would NOT respond to Q3a.  A project that is intended to serve 
residents disbursed throughout the City must fit under the LIMITED CLIENTELE criteria and respond to 
Q3b. 

9. For Public Service projects, when providing outcomes the example uses a whole number to 
address the “how many households or individual” impacted requirement.  Are percentages allowed 
instead of a whole number? 

No, whole numbers are required. 

10. On pg. 17 of the handbook, the bolded instructions state “all text boxes have a line limit 4-8 
lines, depending on the question.” If applicants encounter a text box without a limit, can we assume 
that is allowable? 

No, responses are limited only to space provided.  Ensure your response to the RFP does NOT exceed 
the original page of the RFP as released. 

11. Will secondary review allow for minor corrections / clarifications as it has in the past? 

No, there will not be secondary reviews. 
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12. For documents that won’t vary from project to project (if an agency is submitting multiple 
proposals), can only one set be submitted vs. one set per application? For instance, board rosters, 
agency organizational chart, and certification to submit RFP. 

Each RFP for each project needs to be complete and will be scored separately. Board rosters, resumes of 
the staff and organizational chart will be taken from the agency’s RFQ unless new information is 
submitted with the RFP.  Submittal of only one set of certifications per agency is OK but do note that 
there are project-specific certification forms.  Ensure your project-specific submittal meets the specific 
requirement submittals that apply to each specific proposal submitted. 

13. Does CPAB’s make up reflect the diversity of San Diego’s population? 

Each CPAB member is appointed by each Council member. 

14. What happens when CPAB members’ scores differ significantly on any particular application?  

Each CPAB member will score each application at the individual level and all scores will be averaged. 

15. There was an estimated budget given in the RFQ. How close do programs need to be to the 
estimated budget? 

Agencies are not tied to the budget in the RFQ. The budget listed in the RFP should be the most up to 
date and accurate for the proposed projects. 

16. Where can I find what costs HUD defines as administrative? 

Page 21 of the CDBG Program FY 2015 RFP Handbook list the applicable OMB Circulars related to 
allowable costs and administrative requirements. 

17. In our RFQ submittal, we described two Capital Improvement Projects on one form.  Should 
we submit one consolidated RFP application for these two projects or provide two separate 
applications? 

Your agency will need to submit two separate RFP submittal packages, one per proposed project. 

18. Page 12 of the RFP Handbook states that “A copy of one bid obtained from a licensed 
contractor (dated within 30 days of the RFP submittal date) that includes applicable prevailing federal 
wage rates and fringe benefits in the determination of the total project budget will be required to be 
submitted”.  Should this information be included with the RFP application submittal? 

Yes. This required document is included in the RFP Submittal Checklist under the “Project-Specific 
Requirements” sections under both CIP-Housing Rehabilitation Projects and CIP-PF&I Projects headings. 
Refer to this checklist for all required document submittals. 
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19. What is the difference between Housing Projects and Programs supplemental info forms? 

Per the FY 2015 CDBG RFP Handbook, references to “Housing Rehabilitation Projects” refer to projects 
that have housing units identified in their FY 2015 RFP submittal packet. These projects will typically 
result in completing improvements to multi-unit structures which are rented by households that qualify 
as LMI.   References to “Housing Rehabilitation Programs” refer to projects that do not have housing 
units identified in their FY 2015 RFP submittal packet. These projects will typically complete an 
application process to determine the housing units/LMI households that will result from the project.  
These projects will have the targeted number of households that will be assisted with the proposed 
budget requested, but will not have any information on the housing units that the other CIP projects are 
able to provide.  This information is listed in the FY 2015 CDBG RFP Handbook on Page 11. 

20. For construction projects are bonds required to be obtained? 

Yes, for construction projects exceeding $100,000, bid, performance and payment bonds are required.  
The estimated costs of the performance and payment bonds should be included in the construction bid 
as part of your RFP submittal.  The responsibility to obtain the bonds is that of the general contractor 
and the costs associated with obtaining the performance and payment bonds are an eligible CDBG 
reimbursable expenditure.  Please refer to the FY 2014 Operating Manual Section II Procurement 
Requirements Subsection C. Bonding Requirements for specific detail.   

21. The forms online will not let me type in answers (e.g. certification forms). When will this be 
updated? 

The forms have been updated and revised forms have been uploaded on our website.  


